Addendum No. 1
Request for Proposals (RFP)
(Solicitation #5012)

Contract Management System
Addendum Issued on Friday, August 25, 2017
The following information clarifies information in the above referenced RFP:
This Addendum lists questions for clarification of entries mentioned in the RFP and Seattle Housing Authority (SHA) responses. 
Question 1. Is SHA looking for an Off the Shelf product? Or is your agency interested in a custom application?
SHA Response: Yes. We are open to anything. 
Question 2. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada)

SHA Response: SHA has no restriction on where companies are located. The selected vendor must comply with all applicable state and federal regulations.
Question 3. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada)

SHA Response: Yes

Question 4.  Can we submit the proposals via email?
SHA Response: Yes. See section B. Submittal Requirements of the RFP. 
Question 5. Please clarify the number users (by role and department) expected to need access to the system.  
SHA Response: 11 Purchasing, 10 or more in the customer departments, and approval routings.
Question 6. Does the Authority have an estimate on the number of users who will need to access the system at the same time (Concurrent Licenses)?
SHA Response: 30
Question 7. Does the Authority need a schedule tool to manage contracts?
SHA Response: Not sure what this means
Question 8. Will the system be required to track sub-contractors? If yes, does that tracking include sub contractor financial values and payments?
SHA Response: The system will track subcontractors but not payment to subcontractors.
Question 9. Does the system intend to track insurance compliance?

SHA Response: Yes
Question 10. To clarify, the Letter of Intent to Respond allows the vendor to demo the proposed System – based upon SHA’s requirements – rather than a written response?   In that scenario, what written documentation must be provided in addition to the demo?
SHA Response: The Letter of Interest requirements are outlined in Section D: INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED IN YOUR LETTER OF INTEREST. These are due prior to any system demo (due date: 08/28 at 1PM PST). After the Letter of Interest is received it will be reviewed and system demos will be scheduled.
Question 11. Is the demo to be presented in person, on location at 190 Queen Ann Ave N, Seattle, or can the vendor present the demo via an online presentation?
SHA Response: I am ok with a vendor doing a webex to show us the system.

Question 12. I am wondering what the estimated value of the project is and also if you have a start date in mind for when work on the project needs to begin? 

SHA Response: Estimated value (for 2017) would be $35,000 or so. Start date – early October.

Question 13. Approximately how many users do you plan to have on the system?

a.     Full Time internal

b.     Part Time Internal (executives, viewers, workflow approvers)

c.     External users (vendors, subs & engineers)

SHA Response: From the requirements: 

Internal users: 

· 1 Contract Manager

· 7 Contract Administrators

· 20-30 Project Managers

· 100 reviewers/approver

Question 14. Does the Authority have a budget for this initiative?

SHA Response: Yes.

Question 15. Will web demos be an option?  Asking because the letter of interest is due Monday, it will most likely take a day to review, and the demos are scheduled for Wednesday and Thursday.  This schedule makes travel arrangements extremely difficult. 

SHA Response: Yes, web demos are fine.

Question 16. How many users will require access (Full-Access: These are your day to day users, admin's, super users which typically add, edit records, documents, etc.; Casual Access: These are your Approvers, Requesters, Reviewers, and any user which requires full access to features, but generally isn't a day to day user. Read Only Access: These are users which typically access the system, but don't edit or adjust data or documents. Typically, they would potentially search for data or documents and/or run reports.)?

SHA Response: 

Internal users: 

· 1 Contract Manager (FT)

· 7 Contract Administrators (FT)

· 20-30 Project Managers (FT)

· 100 reviewers/approver

Question 17. Preferred deployment:  On Premise (client hosted) or Saas (as a service, we host via the cloud)?

SHA Response: SaaS preferred

Question 18. How many unique contract types (Views) are required? (i.e. SOW, MSA, NDA, etc.) 

SHA Response: We will have six solicitation types – each of those solicitation types will have multiple documents associated with them:

· RFP

· RFI

· SOW

· Terms & Conditions

· Change Orders

· Work Orders

· Vendor Fact Sheets

· Supporting documents

· Addenda

Question 19. What is the average number of fields within each contract type for capturing data? Fields are key terms that you wish to be able to search, sort & report upon. Common examples: Company Name, Milestone Date, deliverables, division, status, financial info, etc.)

SHA Response: We will have 20 or so fields that we will wish to track.

Question 20. Does some of your contract data currently exist today in either a spreadsheet, homegrown database, or other application that you would want migrated into the chosen CLM system during your implementation?

SHA Response: We have an Access database and spreadsheets. Information for active contracts will be migrated into to the chosen CLM system. 

Question 21. What is the estimated number of reports you would like the system to generate? 

SHA Response: We plan to start with 7 reports, but will want the capability to add others.

Question 22. How many contract templates or other documents such as letters, notices, forms etc. will you want in the selected CLM system to be able to auto populate?
SHA Response: 

1. RFP

2. RFI

3. SOW

4. Terms & Conditions

5. Change Order

6. Work Order

7. Vendor Fact Sheet

Question 23. Which best describes the level of complexity for authoring new agreements or other documents through the selected CLM system? 

SHA Response: [image: image1.png]


 Intermediate: Something in between the Basic and Advanced descriptions. 

Question 24. What systems will you want to integrate with the selected CLM system? For each system please list the following: 

SHA Response: 

System - Name Enterprise JDE

Approx. number of fields that will be synced between this system and selected CLM system - There will be no sync of data, just a data feed.

Whether data and/or documents will be flowing: 

A) Into the CLM system - Yes

B) From the CLM system - No

C) Bi-directional - No

Question 25. We will be assigning a project manager to oversee scheduling of professional service team members. Will customer also be assigning a project manager internally for this project?
SHA Response: YES

Questions 26. Desired Deployment Option:  SaaS (via cloud/we host) or On Premise (client hosts)?

SHA Response: Saas

Question 27. How many Users does Seattle Housing Authority need to have access to the CMS?

SHA Response: 

Internal users: 

1 Contract Manager (FT)

7 Contract Administrators (FT)

20-30 Project Managers (FT)

100 reviewers/approver

Question 28. Does SHA require onsite deployment for the system, or is SaaS acceptable?

SHA Response: Saas Preferred

Question 29. Are Online demonstrations (via WebEx, GoToMeeting, etc) acceptable by SHA?

SHA Response:  Yes

Question 30. Please provide estimated metrics for the following: Total number of estimated users?
SHA Response: 

Internal users: 


1 Contract Manager (FT)

7 Contract Administrators (FT)

20-30 Project Managers (FT)
100 reviewers/approvers
Question 31. Total number of contracts added annually?
SHA Response: Annual Contracts: 200

Question 32. Total number of SHA departments?

SHA Response:  8

Question 33. Does some of your contract data currently exist today in either a spreadsheet, homegrown database, or other application that you would want migrated into the chosen CLM system during your implementation?

SHA Response: We have an Access database and spreadsheets. Information for active contracts will be migrated into to the chosen CLM system. 

      

Question 34. What is the data source? 

SHA Response: Access database of contract information

Question 35. Are the documents currently linked to the data source?

SHA Response: No but the documents will need to be loaded into the selected solution

Question 36. What format(s) do the documents currently reside in? (.pdf, .tiff, .doc, paper etc.)

SHA Response: Documents are primarily word, pdf and excel.

Question 37. What is a rough approximate number of records being migrated?

(1k,5k,10k,25k,100k,etc.)

SHA Response: 500 active contracts (each contract record could multiple documents related, i.e. change orders, and associated documents). Total number is unknown but likely not more than 5k

Question 38. Will the migration be handled in separate Phases?  (i.e. from different departments or business units, etc.) If so, please provide additional detail. 

SHA Response: This is not yet determined but will be negotiated with the selected vendor as part of implementation planning.

                            

Question 39. Does the Letter of Interest just require the information on page 6 (Exhibit D) on the original PDF?

SHA Response:  The Letter of Interest must include information as outlined in section 
D. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED IN YOUR LETTER OF INTEREST of the RFP.  
Question 40. Regarding forms and documentation; only the Vendor Fact Sheet is required now, and the others will only be required if selected?

SHA Response: Yes. The Vendor Fact Sheet is only required to be completed and returned with your Letter of Interest. The other forms will only need to be completed and returned if selected. 
Question 41. Is there an expected length of the Letter of Interest, or any format requirements?

SHA Response: No. The Letter of Interest requirements are outlined in section D. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED IN YOUR LETTER OF INTEREST of the RFP.  
Question 42. Will SHA need previously managed contracts to be migrated into the new CMS? If so, how many contracts/documents will need to be migrated? 

SHA Response: Roughly 500 active contracts will be migrated

Question 43. Does SHA require its Vendors (in relation to the solicitations SHA will advertise) to submit proposals online? Or is the system just needed for internal management of projects/solicitations/contracts?

SHA Response: SHA is exploring the option to allow for electronic submittals.

Question 44. If a solution provider does not require subcontractors, please describe the Section 3 requirements that apply, if any.

SHA Response: If no subcontractors will be utilized please indicate that on the Section 3 Business Certification and Resident Employment Plan form. SHA requires that contractor to the greatest extent possible employ Section 3 individuals. If the opportunities do not exist please state that. 

Question 45. Please provide estimated metrics for the following: Types of Solicitations performed (e.g. RFI, RFQ, IFB, RFP, etc.)

SHA Response: 

IFB = 15 %

Bid by Fax (RFQ) = 15 %

RFP = 40%

RFP (informal) = 25 %

RFQu = 10%

Question 46. Please list all procurement applications (and versions if known) in use by SHA besides JD Edwards Enterprise One (e.g. Purchasing, Bid Solicitation, Vendor Management, etc.)

SHA Response: JD Edwards Enterprise (JDE)  is the only application utilized.
Question 47. Please detail any integration touchpoints with current applications SHA wishes to connect to the new contract management system.

SHA Response: The selected solution will import vendor data and payment data from JD Edwards Enterprise (JDE) into the contract management system.

Question 48. Please provide an approved budget range for this project. 

SHA Response: $35,000 annually

Question 49. What vendor solutions, if any, has SHA previewed prior to releasing RFP 5012?

SHA Response: The only solution that has been demonstrated is the JD Edward Enterprise (JDE) contract module.
Question 50. Average number of columns per report?  
SHA Response: Report Specifications:

	Report
	Columns
	Parameters

	Contract Financials
	Contract #

Project Manager

Contract Administrator

Vendor*

Original Total Budget

Current Total Budget

Change Orders (Date and #)*

Work Orders (Date and #)*

Invoices Paid (Date and Amount)*

Remaining Budget for Year

Remaining Total Budget

*- if applicable
	Contract #

Organizational Unit

Project Manager

	Contract Status
	Contract #
Project Manager

Contract Administrator

Vendor*

Contract Status

History of Workflows*

* - if applicable
	Contract #

Organizational Unit

Project Manager

Contract Administrator

	Contract Abstract
	Contract #

Contract Type

Project Manager

Contract Administrator

Contract Description

Status

Vendor*

Links to Documents


	Contract #

	Open Workflow Items
	Contract #

Contract Name

Workflow Action Needed
	User

	Organization Dashboard
	Contract #

Contract Name

Contract Type

Contract Status

Project Manager

Contract Administrator

Organizational Unit

Total Budget

Link to the Contract Abstract
	Project Manager

Organizational Unit

Contract Administrator

Contract Status

Year

	Vendor Dashboard
	Vendor #

Vendor Name

Total Dollars Awarded

Associated Contracts

Links to Vendor Documents
	WMBE

WBE

MBE

CBE

Small Business

Section 3

Contract Status

	Contract Administrator Workload
	# Contracts of each Status and the total Budget

Link to Contract Details
	Contract Administrator
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